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I. Questions and Answers 
 
 
Enclosed is a summary of questions and answers that were sent to the NextGen NYCHA email address at 
NextGenNYCHARFQ@nycha.nyc.gov in regards to the 63939 Request for Qualifications.  

 
 

1. Is this letter an open invitation for affordable housing to rent or buy?  Is this RFQ for developers? 
 
Response: NYCHA, in collaboration with HPD is seeking applications in response to this RFQ from qualified 
applicants to create a list of pre-qualified developers for the development of affordable housing on various NYCHA-
owned properties. Applicants selected are Pre-Qualified developers that will be eligible to submit proposals in 
response to forthcoming RFEI for the development of affordable housing. 

 
2. Any difference between an RFP and an RFEI? 
 

Response: The RFQ/RFEI process separates the RFP process into two phases.  One of the goals of the RFQ/RFEI 
process is to reduce the amount of information that is submitted, without compromising the integrity of the 
competitive review process. 

 
3. Do organizations previously awarded sites through earlier NextGeneration NYCHA RFP’s need to submit an RFQ response 

or are they already designated as a “Pre-Qualified Developer” based on the prior award(s)? 
 

 Response: Yes, any organization that would like to be considered for the upcoming RFEIs for NextGeneration  
 NYCHA’s 100% affordable developments will need to submit a response to the RFQ. 

 
4. Can a developer that has been selected through the RFQ reply to the RFEI as a joint venture with a developer that has 

not been selected for the RFQ? 
 

Response: Yes, more information will be provided in the RFEI. 
  

5. Can a developer be part of Multiple JV’s? 
 

Response: A developer may not be part of multiple joint-venture partnerships for this RFQ. 
 
6. If selected, can a developer change the partnership during the RFEI process? 

 
 Response: A developer may change their partnership during the RFEI process; however the member(s) from the 
 initial RFQ submission who has the qualified development experience from the team must be included. What is 
 being evaluated at this time is the experience of the principals.  
 

7. Within the RFQ, you’re to identify the development team including the architect and general contractor, but it seems 
different sites would be more appropriate for different architects, general contracts and perhaps different non-profit 
partners. What is the best way to approach this in the RFQ? 

 
Response: The RFQ only requires the developer, lead project manager, property manager, and legal counsel as 
part of the developer team. At this time, we are not requiring design team, engineering team, or construction 
team. See page 12 of the RFQ for reference. 
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8. Will all qualified developers, be able to participate in all of the RFEI which come out through this or will only a subset of 
the qualified developers be able to participate? 
 

Response: This will be finalized during the RFEI process. Submissions for the RFQ will be submitted before there is 
a determination.  Also please note, this is not an open, rolling RFQ. 

 
9. We submitted all required information for an HPD/NYCHA RFQ in the summer of 2013. In March of 2014 we were 

notified that we were designated as being qualified. Do we have to do this again?  
 

Response: Yes, see response to question 1 above. The 2013 RFQ was specifically for supportive housing 
developers. 

 
10. Section 5 Qualification Criteria - Development Experience of the RFQ, states that the proposer must have successfully 

completed at least one high quality new construction project of at least 100 units in NYC within the last 7 years.  Our 
organization has successfully completed a new construction project of 98 units of housing in NYC (just 2 units short of the 
minimum), but also has a current development portfolio of an additional 370 units that have been successfully financed 
and/or are now under construction. Considering our project experience, would we be excluded from contention because 
the largest recent development was 98 units and not 100? 
 

Response: We would like to see teams that are capable and experienced and have the track record that we can 
rely on to know that these units will be developed. To that end, if you have experience that does not exactly match 
the criteria, you may put together a summary of your experience and justify that you are an experienced team. 
 

11. Qualification Criteria 
a. Comparable Development Experience: Will NYCHA consider a developer with multiple projects totaling 300 units in the 
past seven years as equivalent experience to one project of at least 100 units?  There are many experienced 
nonprofit/community based developers who has developed prolifically, but in buildings/lots with smaller footprints. 
b. Comparable Management Experience: Will NYCHA consider/wait the manager's past experience specifically managing 
low income, subsidized buildings/tenants? 
 

Response: We would like to see teams that are capable and experienced and have the track record that we can 
rely on to know that these units will be developed. To that end, if you have experience that does not exactly match 
the criteria, you may put together a summary of your experience and justify that you are an experienced team. 

 
12. Do the projects submitted under the development experience have to be 100% affordable? 

 
   Response: Yes. 

  
13. Can supportive housing projects be included? 

 
  Response: Yes.  

 
14. For the development experience, do the completed projects need to be occupied or can they be financed and completed 

with construction? 
 

 Response: The projects should have completed construction. Projects do not have to be leased up yet. 
 

15. What about Rehabbed? Can those be included? 
 

 Response: Rehabilitation projects will not be included in the evaluation of development experience. 
 

16. In Tab B, can a prior project still be in construction, or should it be completed through lease up and operations? 
 



 

 

 

Response: All projects submitted as part of the Development Team Prior Projects, Experience & Narrative should 
only include projects that have construction completed and have obtained at least a Temporary Certificate of 
Occupancy. 

 
 

17. Should For-Profit Developers respond to the RFQ? 
 

Response: Yes. This RFQ is open to all developers.  Any developer interested in responding to RFEIs for NextGen 
100% Affordable Housing development sites should apply. In addition, SBEs, MBEs, WBEs, and not-for profits 
developers are strongly encouraged to apply, either as a stand-alone or as a joint-venture with developers who 
may have more affordable housing development experience.  

 
18. In the Narrative section the instructions says:   

“In addition to the project detailed narrative description, documentation of the following aspects of each project are 
required: 
• A limited Architectural Submission of the completed project which may include a site plan, a typical floor plan, a 
ground floor plan, and photographs; and 
• The design team’s resume, focused on projects in the last seven (7) years, and qualifications detailing applicable 
residential and mixed-use development experience.” 
 
Does this mean you would like to see the architectural submission for the 2 past projects and also the resumes for the 
design teams who worked on those past 2 projects? 
 
Or do those instructions simply state what we are to do for proposed projects of future RFEI? 
 

Response: As part of the RFQ submissions development teams should submit elevations, floor plans and a 
development site plan from two previous and separate projects along with the resumes of the design team that 
worked on these two projects. 

  
19. Will RAD conversions be covered by the RFQ? 

 
Response: No, this RFQ includes new construction developments that are part of the NextGeneration NYCHA and 
HPD 100% affordable housing pipeline. 

 
20. May I have a copy of the attendance sheet from both Wednesday and Thursday’s information session? 

 
Response: The attendance sheet is included with this addendum. 
 

 
21. How often will the RFQ qualifying list be opened?  Will updates to experience be submitted/received annually? 

 
Response: The Qualified Developer list associated with this NextGeneration NYCHA RFQ for Affordable Housing 
will stay active for at least two years.  The Qualified Developer list will be re-opened at NYCHA and HPD’s 
discretion.  Updates to experience may be requested at the time of a submission for the RFEIs. 

 
22. If selected, are there a minimum amount of RFEIs the selected developer must respond to per year? Is there anything 

additional the developer must do to stay qualified? 
 

 Response: There is no minimum number of RFEIs that a developer must respond to per year. 
 
23. In an effort to provide the maximum amount of information requested in “Tab E – Assets Statement” of the RFQ, could 

you provide guidance on the best process for executing a confidentiality agreement for the submission of our 
audited/certified financial statements? 
 



 

 

 

Response: Please see Section 8. Confidentiality of the RFQ.  Submissions are subject to FOIL.  An      
 Applicant should designate in its Application those portions of the Application, if any, that the                    
 Applicant believes are trade secrets or if disclosed, would cause substantial injury to the competitive                   
 position of the Applicant. To the extent the law permits, NYCHA and HPD will use reasonable efforts to   
 hold such designated portions of the Application in confidence. 

 
24. Hi, I noticed that Form C-2 “Not-for-Profit Organization Information and Questionnaire” is not available for download on 

the NYCHA RFQ website. There is a link at the bottom that indicates a download for forms C-1 and C-2, however, after 
downloading the document, I see that only C-1 is included. Will you correct this on your website? 

 
Response:  This has been corrected.  You can find both Forms C-1 and C-2 at 

http://www1.nyc.gov/assets/hpd/downloads/word/NextGen-NYCHA/NextGen-NYCHA-RFQ-Form-
C1.docx 
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Pre-Submission Conference 
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NextGeneration NYCHA Sites 

Request for Qualifications 
 
 

August 3rd and 4th, 2016 
3 PM, NYCHA, 90 Church Street, 5th Floor, Ceremonial Room 
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1. HPD and NYCHA Collaboration 

2. Request for Qualification 

3. Submission Requirements 

4. Qualification Criteria 

5. Important Dates 

6. Questions and Answers 

Agenda                               
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HPD and NYCHA Collaboration                     
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1. RFQ -1st step of Procurement Process 

2. Encourage SBEs, MBEs, WBEs and Not-for-Profit Developers to Respond 

3. RFEI – 2nd Step of Procurement Process 

 

 

Request for Qualifications 
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1.   Completeness Checklist 

2.   Applicant Description 

3.   Development Team Projects, Experience, & Narrative 

4.   Development and Management Experience 

5.   Development Capacity and Current Workload 

6.   Asset Statement 

Submission Requirements  
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1. Review Team 

2. Completeness of Application 

3. Comparable Development Experience 

4. Comparable Management Experience 

5. Development Capacity and Current Workload 

6. Ability to Finance 

7. Adverse Findings 

 

Qualification Criteria  
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Friday, August 26th    Last day to submit Questions to     
       NextGenNYCHARFQ@NYCHA.nyc.gov 

       by 2 PM 

 

Friday, October 14th   Submission of Proposals to NYCHA    
       by 4 PM 

  

Important Dates        
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Questions & Answers 
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